


Melissa Whitney

From: Thomas Drzazgowski

Sent: Wednesday, November 8, 2023 11:56 AM
To: COB_mail

Subject: Landscape Design Manual

A question came up as to why the P23TA00001 references a resolution. The Landscape Design Manual is adopted
outside of the Pima County Zoning Code and is a separate document and is referenced in the Zoning Code. In these
cases, it is adopted by resolution and not by ordinance. The resolution begins on page 5 of the Board packet which lists
exhibit A. This is different than other types of resolutions since it is not amending a rezoning and it is a manual or
supplemental document. If there are any questions, please let me know.

Tom Drzazgowski

Pima County - Chief Zoning Inspector
201 N Stone Av — 1% Floor
520.724.6675
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Another commissioner agreed about oleander, stating he has seen it growing along a high-
elevation trail in the Coronado NF, and that Mexican palo verde and yellow bird of paradise are
appropriate additions to the prohibited plant list. The commissioner continued to ask if bufferyard
requirements include the walls constructed around individual lots within subdivisions. Staff
responded that bufferyard walls are for subdivision perimeters only. The commissioner asked how
the undisturbed natural desert bufferyard is determined (versus a disturbed site). Staff responded
that undisturbed desert sites are easy to identify, but that developers may be allowed to restore
disturbed sites to a natural condition, though installing a bufferyard is generally easier.

The commissioner continued with questions about hybrids and cultivars in the regulated plant list.
Staff responded that cultivars (i.e., phenotypes) of the same native species will be permitted, but
hybrids, which could be crossed with non-native species, will not. The commissioner asked about
manual revisions and exceptions being under the purview of the Planning Director (rather than
the board). Staff responded that the manual update must go to the board for approval, but the
manual itself is not zoning code and the director's ability to approve revisions provides greater
flexibility. The commissioner asked about the difference between simple revisions and board-
approved amendments. Staff responded that requested revisions must meet the Purpose and
Overview of the manual.

A commissioner asked about concerns regarding screening being required outside the bufferyard.
Staff responded that requirement was changed and screening may be erected within the
bufferyard. The commissioner quoted from a comment letter which states that species not being
considered for the regulatory plant list have been otherwise chosen for use in the region due to
their ability to thrive and fit in with the native environment. The commissioner stated that the same
justification was likely used for introduced non-native plants that became invasive problems (e.g.,
cheatgrass, buffelgrass), and that these plants have thrived and fit in too well within natural
environments.

A commissioner opined that he is supportive of Chilean mesquite being included on the prohibited
plant list, due to its appearance and lack of wildlife habitat qualities. Staff responded that additions
could be made to the approved plant list through the revision process.

The commission opened the public hearing. No one requested to speak and the public hearing
was closed.

Commissioner Gungle moved to recommend APPROVAL of the final draft manual amendment;
Commissioner Matter gave second.

By a voice vote the commission voted to recommend APPROVAL of the final draft manual

amendment 8-0 (Commissioners Hook and Truitt were absent).
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RESOLUTION 2023-

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF PIMA COUNTY,
ARIZONA; RELATING TO PLANNING; AMENDING THE PIMA COUNTY
LANDSCAPE DESIGN MANUAL.

IT IS RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA AS
FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Pima County Landscape Design Manual is hereby amended pursuant to
Zoning Code chapter 18.73 by updating bufferyard and screening standards and permitted and
prohibited plant lists, and by adding stormwater harvesting requirements, attached to this
Resolution as Exhibit A and incorporated by this reference.

Section 2. The various County officers and employees are authorized and directed to
perform all acts necessary to give effect to this Resolution.

Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective on the date of adoption.

Passed and adopted, this day of , 2023.

Chairman, Pima County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

Clerk, Board of Supervisors

APPROVED AS TO FORM: APPRO /ESW
) .
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Manual ends at previous page.

Following pages include Staff Report and
Public Comments.



PIMA COUNTY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT
PLANNING DIVISION
STAFF REPORT TO THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

PUBLIC HEARING
SEPTEMBER 27, 2023

P23TA00001 LANDSCAPE DESIGN MANUAL AMENDMENT

STATUS / AGENDA ITEMS Planning and Zoning Commission Public Hearing
Landscape Manual Amendments

REQUEST A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of Pima County,
Arizona, Relating to Zoning (Title 18); Chapter 18.73
(Landscaping, Buffering and Screening Standards);
Amending the Landscape Design Manual by Updating
Bufferyard, Screening, Stormwater Harvesting, and
Permitted Plant Requirements. (Districts: All)

INITIATION Planning and Zoning Commission Hearing, August 30, 2023

Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends APPROVAL of the proposed Resolution to amend the Screening and
Bufferyard {formerly ‘Landscape’) Design Manual.

This proposed amendment will simplify design standards for landscape bufferyards, include
stormwater harvesting to supplement irrigation, and support a native desert plant palette adapted
to the regional Sonoran Desert environment.

The Planning and Zoning Commission authorized staff to amend the Pima County Zoning Code
Chapter 18.73 and Landscape Design Manual at its August 30, 2023, hearing. Staff is presenting
the amended manual at this meeting and is working on changes to the Zoning Code in
coordination with similar changes being made by City of Tucson. The Zoning Code amendment
will be brought forward at a future hearing.

Background

The Landscape Design Manual was approved by the Board of Supervisors in the mid-1980s, with
addenda for permitted and prohibited plant lists and other sections included at later dates. Pima
County Zoning Code Section 18.73.030.A states that the manual may be amended by Resolution
of the Board after a noticed public hearing.

The proposed manual amendment is supported by Zoning Code ordinances, Pima County
Comprehensive Plan goals and policies, and other county plans:

Pima County Zoning Code

Chapter 18.72 - Native Plant Protection, lists findings for the preservation of plant species and
communities native to Pima County, to:



= Promote a sense of place and enhance community appearance

= Maintain regional identity, which contributes to economic development by attracting
tourism and new business

= Protect property values, improve and maintain quality of life, support community values
and lifestyle

= Stabilize desert soils, decrease erosion, maintain criginal features of habitats important to
native fauna

» Promote water conservation with drought-tolerant vegetation that requires minimal
supplemental irrigation and maintenance, and helps moderate climate that reduces
energy costs

« Reduce non-native plant allergens and improve air quality

Pima Prospers, the 2015 update of the Pima County Comprehensive Plan, identifies goals and
policies that support the proposed amendment:

3.4 Environmental Element

Goal 2: Minimize climate change impacts in Pima County and increase human, economic and
hatural environmental resiliency

= Policy 1 - Support climate adaptation strategies that benefit the public health, economy
and environment by: improving stormwater management strategies to minimize runoff in
urban areas, making beneficial use of stormwater and retaining natural open space

» Policy 2 - Pursue preparedness strategies such as diversification of water supplies, water
conservation, improved demand management and increased reliance on water harvesting

»  Policy 6 - Support and strengthen policies and programs to control and eradicate non-
native invasive species to reduce the threat of wildfire and loss of native species

3.5 Housing and Community Design Element

Goal 14; Encourage cost-effective green building and site design methods and materials
» Policy 2 - Increase use of reclaimed water and rainwater harvesting

4.2 Water Resources Element

Goal 3: Support efficient water demand management practices and strategies that protect local
and basin-wide water supplies

» Policy 4 - Encourage the use of renewable water sources including reclaimed water, CAP
water and water harvesting

+  Policy 6 - Promote drought tolerant landscapes, use of reclaimed water and rainwater
harvesting, and Low Impact Development (LID) principles that treats stormwater as a
resource

4.9 Flood Controf and Drainage Efement

Goal 3: Integrate watercourses, riparian and upland habitat, land use, recreation and drainage to
achieve healthy development patterns

= Policy 3 - Encourage green street standards that integrate watercourse, riparian and
upland habitat, recreation, alternate modes of transportation, shade and landscape
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amenities, drought tolerant plants and drainage as a form of water harvesting in new
development and allow for the natural filtration of precipitation

Sonoran Desert Conservation Plan

» Ensure the long-term survival of the full spectrum of plants and animals that are indigenous
to Pima County through maintaining or improving the habitat conditions and ecosystem
functions necessary for their survival

The Landscape Design Manual amendment is an implementation item in the Environmental
Element of Pima Prospers (2015) and was identified as a “low-hanging fruit” project during
Development Services Department (DSD) and Regional Flood Control District participation in the
Growing Water Smart (GWS) workshop with the Babbitt Center for Land and Water Policy and
the Sonoran Institute (March 2022). Following the workshop DSD successfully competed for a
GWS Technical Assistance Grant to update the manual and contracted with McGann and
Associates, a local planning and landscape architecture firm, to work on the update.

Manual Amendment

Goals
DSD identified the following goals for the manual amendment:

= Update, simplify and streamline the manual
« Incorporate on-site water harvesting to support landscape
»  Promote the use of regionally adapted native desert plant species

Changes and additions to the existing (1980s) manual are detailed in the staff report, below:

Title

The title of the draft manual was changed to Screening and Bufferyard Design Manual to reflect
Section 18.73.040-Screening and Bufferyard Requirements of the Zoning Code. The Zoning Code
defines bufferyards as landscaping elements and screening devices to reduce potentially adverse
impacts of adjoining dissimilar land uses (18.73.020). The manual provides bufferyard standards
specifically between residential subdivisions, commercial and industrial developments, and public
rights-of-way (ROWSs), but does not prescribe landscaping or plant species requirements on
private residential or commercial properties, common areas or similar situations. Therefore, the
title fandscape manual was somewhat inaccurate.

Bufferyard Types and Requirements

The existing manual has 10 bufferyard types (A-J), with 5-6 different options for each type,
including a natural undisturbed desert option. The draft manua!l has reduced the number of
bufferyards to 5 total, with 3-4 options under each, including the undisturbed desert option.

Functionally, new bufferyard requirements are proposed to increase survivability of plants in the
bufferyard. The existing manual requirements have been described by landscape professionals
as ‘overplanting’ bufferyards — some options currently require 10 canopy trees to be planted within
a 100-foot length of bufferyard (10-foot-wide Bufferyard D, below), as well as additional shrubs,
accent plants and ground cover. The draft manual will require 3-4 canopy trees for the same
length of bufferyard, which takes the mature size of these canopy trees into account.

Examples of Bufferyards C and D in the existing manual and proposed equivalent Bufferyard C
are shown below:
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Water Harvesting Requirements

The draft manual requires stormwater infiltration basins in bufferyards. Subdivisions and
commercial developments are required to provide flood retention and detention, and “first flush”
to collect the first one-half inch of rainfall. Similarly, stormwater infiltration basins will collect and
concentrate on-site precipitation to irrigate landscaping. The manual provides basic guidelines for
basins and links to county and city reference manuals for additional instruction. The existing
manual requirement for water-efficient irrigation systems is now proposed as optional.

Official Regulatory Plant List

The existing manual has three plant lists: the Arizona Department of Water Resources (ADWR)
Tucson Active Management Area (TAMA) Low Water Use/Drought Tolerant Plant List (1996), a
General Resource Plants List, and the Buffer Overfay Zone Approved Plant List (1988), of native
plants for landscaping on projects subject to Chapter 18.67-Buffer Overlay Zone (BOZ).

DSD and McGann staff selected native species from the Sonoran, Mojave and Chihuahuan
Deserts from the 2022 ADWR TAMA Low Water Use & Drought Tolerant Plant List for the
proposed regulatory plant list. Bufferyards in the county will be at elevations between about 2000
to 4000 feet ASL (Mt. Lemmon is exempt from bufferyard requirements), so local higher-elevation
plant species that would require additional irrigation were excluded. The BOZ permitted plants,
species native to Pima County, evergreen (i.e., non-deciduous for year-round screening), habitat
and pollinator plants and other characteristics are identified in notes in the table.

Staff excluded introduced ornamental species from the 2022 ADWR TAMA list. These were
originally introduced because of their appearance and ability to grow in the desert; however, some
have escaped cultivation and become established on their own (e.g., tamarisk, tree of heaven,
fountain grass, African sumac) with impacts on natural ecosystem structure and function. For
example, a relatively new plant from South Africa, stinknet (Oncosiphon piltdiferum), first identified
in Tucson in 2015, colonizes disturbed lands, spreads rapidly, causes skin rash and asthma in
sensitive individuals, and “burns like gasoline” producing an irritating acrid smoke {Weed Warriors
Take Aim at Tucson’'s Largest Stinknet Qutbreak So Far, Tucson.com, May 19, 2023). Stinknet
is thought to have been introduced as a cultured desert habitat specimen in Phoenix
(SouthwestDesertFlora.com, 2020) and is the fastest spreading invasive weed to ever have
occurred in Arizona {The Plant Press, Arizona Native Plant Society, Winter 2020).

The manual only covers landscape bufferyards as identified in Zoning Code Title 18, and
introduced ornamental plant species may still be used in other landscape designs and locations.
However, the manual amendment is an opportunity to promote the use of regional native plants
in the local community, and for Pima County to continue to set an example for preserving and
restoring native habitats.

Prohibited Plant List

The existing Prohibited Plant List is three plants identified by the Health and Environmental
Quality departments as producers of large amounts of allergenic wind-borne pollen: Bermuda
grass, mulberry and olive trees (Pima County Code, Title 7-Environmental Quatity, Chapter 7.41-
Pollen Control). There was discussion about the olive and mulberry tree prohibition with local
native plant nursery and Mission Garden staff, who are promoting heritage food trees in the
region. However, staff feels it is outside of DSD’s purview to amend Title 7 of Pima County Code.

The draft manual Prohibited Plant List is comprised of species known to be noxious and invasive

in the Sonoran Desert, which are frequently included in county rezoning conditions — species are
not to be planted and should be removed if found on-site.
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P23TA00001 LANDSCAPE DESIGN MANUAL AMENDMENT - Stakeholder Outreach

Pima County Departments

Environmental Quality

Native Plant Nursery

Natural Resources, Parks and Recreation
Regional Flood Control District
Transportation

Qutside Contacts

Arc Studios Landscape Architecture
Arizona Nursery Assn.

Bowman Landscape Architecture
Caryl Clement Design

City of Tucson

Civano Nursery

Coalition for Scnoran Desert Protection
Desert Survivors Nursery

Diamond Ventures

GRS Landscape Architects
Larsen-Baker Real Estate

Metro Pima Alliance

Novak Environmental

The Planning Center

Rick Engineering

Scouthern Arizona Home Builders Assn.
Spadefoot Nursery

Tucson Chamber of Commerce
Tucson Histeric Mission Garden
Wilder Landscape Architects
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Best wishes, Christina
she / her / ella

Born on ancestral Gabrielino-Tongva lands
Gratefully living on traditional O'odham, Tohona C'adham and Pascua Yaqui fands

Carolyn Campbell

Executive Director

Coalition for Sonoran Desert Protection
738 N. Bth Ave, Suite 205

*please note new Suite number™
Tucseon, AZ 85705

520-388-9925 (office), 520-623-0525 (cell)
**CURRENTLY WORKING REMOTELY***













































